Maple Cliffe

HO-587

Howard County

4012 College Avenue, Ellicott City

. Ca. 1900

Private

Maple Cliffe, 4012 College Avenue, is located 1 mile south of downtown Ellicott City in Howard County,
Maryland. The ca. 1900 house and stable are set on 11.75 acres in the lush rolling piedmont along the Patapsco
River. The buildings face north onto College Avenue and are situated at the end of a drive lined with maples.
The section of the property north and east of the house is a largely flat lawn that is landscaped with mature
specimen trees and garden features. The rest of the property is densely wooded and slopes steeply down to New

Cut Road, which follows a branch of the Patapsco River.

The house at Maple Cliffe is a ca. 1900, 2 4-story, 5-bay x 4-bay, shingled wood-frame, side gable house with a
slate roof, a granite basement, and wood trim. The Queen Anne/Shingle Style house has a boxy mass relieved by
a hexagonal corner tower, large dormer, and L-shaped wood porch. Window openings hold one-over-one wood

windows and retain louvered shutters. The main entry door has a four-light transom and four-light sidelights. A

. wood-frame stable/carriage house, which contributes to the property, is located south of the house. The building
has a square foot print and a side gable roof with a front cross gable. The building is set into the slope behind the
house and is 1 2 -stories at the front and 2 ' -stories at the back. The building is currently shingled, although .
earlier clapboards are visible beneath the shingles, has a granite basement, and an asphalt roof. The house and
stable/carriage house are in good condition, with nearly all of its original features intact. They are suffering

slightly from deferred maintenance.

Maple Cliffe, 4012 College Avenue, is significant as an intact ca. 1900 Queen-Anne/Shingle Style house located
on a large estate lot with mature landscaping. Constructed for the Radcliffe family, who were Ellicott City
merchants, the property embodies the distinctive characteristics of the summer houses built by prosperous
members of the professional and merchant classes in Howard County at the end of the 19" and beginning of the

20" century. While an architect or proficient builder likely designed the house, the house’s designer is not

. currently known.
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic Maple Cliffe
other n/a

2. Location

street and number 4012 College Avenue not for publication
city, town Ellicott City __ vicinity
county Howard County

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Hogg Family Trust (Ron Hogg)

street and number 4012 College Avenue

telephone  410-750-2401

city, town Ellicott City state MD

Zip code 21045

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, efc. Howard County Land Records liber

6794 folio 637

city, fown Columbia tax map 25 tax parcel 04

Tax 1D number  02-217740

o o

Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT

Other:

6. Classification

_Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count

_ district _____ public __ agriculture __landscape Contributing Noncontributing

_ X building(s) __X_private ___commerceltrade __ recreation/culture 2 0 buildings

____structure ___ both ____defense _____religion 0 0 sites

_ site __X _domestic _____social 0 0 structures

______object _____education ____transportation 0 0 objects
__ funerary __work in progress 2 0 Total
______govermnment unknown
______health care ______vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources
__ industry _____ other: previously listed in the Inventory

0




7. Description Inventory No. HO-587

. Condition

___excellent ___deteriorated
X __good ____ruins
___fair ___ altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

Maple Cliffe, 4012 College Avenue, is located 1 mile south of downtown Ellicott City in Howard County, Maryland. The ca. 1900
house and stable are set on 11.75 acres in the lush rolling piedmont along the Patapsco River. The buildings face north onto College
Avenue and are situated at the end of a drive lined with maples. The section of the property north and east of the house is a largely
flat lawn that is landscaped with mature specimen trees and garden features. The rest of the property is heavily wooded and slopes
steeply down to New Cut Road, which follows a branch of the Patapsco River.

The house at Maple Cliffe is a ca. 1900, 2 !4-story, 5-bay x 4-bay, shingled wood-frame, side gable house with a slate roof, a granite
foundation, and wood trim. The house has a boxy mass relieved by a hexagonal corner tower, large dormer, and L-shaped wood
porch. Window openings hold one-over-one wood windows and retain louvered shutters. The main entry door has a four-light
transom and four-light sidelights. The house has an external brick fireplace chimney laid in running bond on the east fagade and a
small 1-story rear ell that is a 20" ¢. addition. The house is in good condition, with nearly all of its original features intact. It is
suffering slightly from deferred maintenance. The wood shingles are nearing the end of their useful life. Shutters are in need of minor
repairs and painted trim is peeling. The owner did not provide access to the interior of the house.

When seen from the front, the house’s asymmetrical composition is balanced about its central axis, which is marked by the main entry
door. The wide front stair, at the basement level, and the large slate-shingled dormer, that pierces the roof, compositionally balance
one another off the axis. The 3-story corner tower at the northeast corner of the house forms a strong vertical element that is balanced
by the horizontal 1-story porch that wraps the north and west facades.

The house’s primary facade faces north. Closely spaced, large window openings dominate the primary fagade. The main block of the
house has three window openings and the main door opening on the 1* floor. The main block of the house has four window openings
on the 2™ floor. The tower projects from the eastern corner of the primary fagade. The attic story gabled dormer has two window
openings, currently shuttered, and a louvered vent in the gable.

The hexagonal tower, which projects from the house’s northeast corner has three window openings on the 1* floor, three window
openings on the 2™ floor, and two small window openings at the basement.

The wood porch is set on granite piers and is topped by a slate hipped roof. The porch has wood Tuscan columns and a simple wood
rail. Two bays of the porch, off the west side of the house, have been screened-in. The screened frame is separate from, and is located
on the porch-side of the original columns and rails,

The west (side) elevation has two 1* floor window openings in the center two bays. The 2™ floor has three window openings located
in the southern three bays. The attic floor has two window openings in the center two bays.

The east (side) elevation has two 1* floor and two 2™ floor window openings in the southern two bays. An external brick fireplace
chimney, for a fireplace that was added by the Kinleins in ca. 1920s) is centered on the elevation. Two attic floor window openings
and two basement window openings flank the chimney. The tower projects from the northern portion of the elevation.

Window openings on the south (rear) elevation are irregularly placed and sized, presumably to correspond to the back-of-house
interior floor plan. The 1* floor has two window openings, located in the eastern two bays. The window opening closer to the kitchen
addition is slightly smaller than other 1* floor windows. The 2™ floor has four window openings. A small, high 2™ story window
opening, presumably for a bathroom, is centered on the elevation. Two ™ story window openings are located in the western two bays
and one 2™ story window opening is located in the eastern-most bay. The foundation is parged with concrete and a cellar bulkhead
projects from the basement at the east end.

. A 1-story addition projects from the west side of the south elevation. The addition has a concrete foundation, a hipped roof, and a
small back porch. The back door is located on the east elevation of the addition. The south and west elevation each have one window
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opening with paired steel three-light casement windows. The addition is shingled to match the house, so it is difficult to date, but the
steel windows make a ca. 1930-1940s date plausible.

A wood-frame stable/carriage house, which contributes to the property, is located south of the house. The building has a square foot
print and a side gable roof with a front cross gable. The building is set into the slope behind the house and is 1 % -stories at the front
and 2 % -stories at the back. The building is currently shingled, although earlier clapboards are visible beneath the shingles. The
stable/carriage house has a granite foundation, and an asphalt roof.

The primary fagade of the stable/carriage house faces north. The large vehicular opening is centered in the north fagade. It currently
encloses a mid-20" century, paneled, wood garage door, although the track for earlier sliding doors remains. The front cross gable is
centered over the entry door and encloses a wood six-light sash. The roof’s fascia board is detailed with false rafter tails.

The west (side) elevation of the stable/carriage house has a granite foundation and is shingled at the 1* and loft stories. The west
elevation has two six-over-six wood windows, one centered on the 1* floor and one centered in the gable on the loft story.

The south (rear) elevation of the stable/carriage house is shingled from top to bottom. It has two wood divided stall doors at the
ground level and one six-over-six wood window centered on the 1* floor. The roof’s fascia board is detailed with false rafter tails.

The east (side) elevation of the stable/carriage house has a granite foundation and is shingled at the 1*' and loft stories. A six-light
wood sash is centered in the basement, a six-over-six wood window is centered in the 1* floor and a loft door, now open and screened,
is centered in the gable.

Maple Cliffe retains historic landscape features, which contribute to the character of the property. The house has a historic maple
allee. The drive, which is now asphalted, has two circles — at the front and back entries. The drive passes west of the house, leads to
the carriage house door and passes east of the stable/carriage house. Mature specimen trees also constitute a primary historic
landscape feature. In addition to the allee of maples, the lawn is dotted with mature trees, including ornamental maples and a copper
beech. The house also has clipped hedges along the roadway, along the drive, and in the lawn east of the house. A mid-20" century
ornamental pool with fountain, water lilies and fish is located east of the house, as is a small brick shrine enclosing a statue of Mary.
A tennis court is located at the east end of the lawn.

Maple Cliffe currently retains integrity of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. Maple Cliffe 1s
located outside Ellicott City on College Avenue, which retains its slow-paced, verdant, historic suburban character. The house and
stable/carriage house are set on 11.75 wooded acres with a large landscaped lawn. The original design, materials, and workmanship of
Maple Cliffe remain remarkably intact and the house retains the feeling of a comfortable tum-of-the-20™ century summer/suburban
home. Its characteristic, long-time association with the merchant-professional families of Ellicott City remains unbroken.




8. Significance Inventory No. HO-587

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
__1600-1699 __ agriculture __ economics __ health/medicine __ performing arts
__1700-1799 __ archeology __ education __ industry __ philosophy
__ 1800-1899 X architecture __ engineering __ invention __ politics/government
X 1900-1999 __art __ entertainment/ __landscape architecture __ religion
__ 2000- __ commerce recreation _ law __ science
__ communications __ethnic heritage __ literature __ social history
__ community planning  __ exploration/ __ maritime history __ transportation
__ conservation settlement __ military __ other:
Specific dates ca. 1900 Architect/Builder unknown
Construction dates ca. 1900

Evaluation for:

National Register Maryland Register X not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form — see manual.)

Maple Cliffe, 4012 College Avenue, is an intact ca. 1900 Queen-Anne/Shingle style house located on a large estate lot with mature
landscaping. Constructed for the Radcliffe family, who were Ellicott City merchants, the property embodies the distinctive
characteristics of the summer houses built by prosperous members of the professional and merchant classes in Howard County at the
end of the 19" and beginning of the 20" century. While an architect or proficient builder likely designed the house, the house’s
designer is not currently known.

The design of Maple Cliffe incorporates features of both the Queen Anne and Shingle styles. Asymmetrical massing, steeply pitched

roof with deep overhanging eaves, corner towers and deep porches are hallmarks of both styles. The slate roof, tower finial, and large
one-over-one windows all have a strongly Queen-Anne character. It is primarily the side gable configuration, heavy stone foundation,
shingle cladding, classical porch columns, and simplicity of door and window detailing that allies the house with the Shingle style.'

Ron Hogg, a current owner of the house, stated that he heard through his family that the house was originally constructed as a summer
house. The house does share the architectural vocabulary of Howard County’s 19" c. summer homes, such as those found in Lawyers
Hill. For the prosperous, the summer house embodied the freedoms of new-found leisure time and “summers now became times to
get away from one’s ordinary routine, or to flee the stresses of industrialized life, to seek recreation amidst the pleasures of nature.™
Even within the 20" century, as summer houses were transformed into year-round suburban residences, the type continues to represent
“the leisured class, who desired an architecture that spoke of easy and carefree !Jastimes, an architecture that was not pretentious or
boastful, that connected with an ancestral past but was not held in check by it.”

Only two families have lived at Maple Cliffe, the Radcliffes, who built and named it, and the Kinleins and Hoggs. The first were
prominent local merchants, the second were builders in the first generation at Maple Cliffe, and lawyers thereafter.

George W. Radcliffe purchased the land where Maple Cliffe is located from the Henry R. Hazlehurst in 1897. Radcliffe was a
merchant who kept a store on Main Street in Ellicott City. In June 1900, the Radcliffes were living “in town” on Main Street. At that
date, George W. Radcliffe, senior (age 41) and his wife Mary G. (age 33) had four children: Evelyn E. (age 8), George W. (age 7),
Hubert L. (age 4) and Alma V. (age 2). Robert Gassaway (age 42), their African-American servant who drove the coal cart also lived
at the Main Street address.* By 1910, the Radcliffe family lived on Beechwood Avenue (College Avenue). By that date, they had two

' Gerald Foster, American Houses, p. 274-283. Virginia and Lee McAlester, A Field Guide to American Houses, p. 266, p. 289-290.
? Leland M. Roth, Shingles Styles: Innovation and Tradition in American Architecture 1874 to 1982, p. 12.

* Ibid, p. 13.

* Department of Commerce — Bureau of the Census, Twelfth Census of United States: 1900, Population Schedule, ED 81, Sheet 1A.
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additional children: Samuel J. (age 9) and Edwin W(arfield] (age 6). By 1920, Mary Radcliffe was widowed at age 51 and had
moved to 1420 Harlem Avenue, on Harlem Park in Baltimore City, with her son Stewart (age 28), who was a clerk in a drug store, her
daughter Alma (age 21), son James (age 18), son Warfield (age 16), and their household servant Robert Gassaway (age 76).°

Julius A. and Teresa M. Kinlein bought the property from Mary Radcliffe in September of 1920. The Kinleins moved to Howard
County from 1329 N. Eden Street, a densely populated German section of East Baltimore. [n January 1920, while still in the city, the
Kinlein family consisted of Julius (age 31), a building contractor, his wife Mary T. (age 32), their five children, Alberta M. (age 8,
Julius H. (age 6), Doris M. (age 4), Alma M. (age 2), Marion T. (age 2 mos). Three others lived with the Kinleins: a boarder, Fred K.
Hogeman (age 67), who was a house carpenter, and two sisters-in law, Sophia and Catherine Plantholt, who were a saleslady and a
clerk, respectively, at a department store.’ By 1930, the family was well established on College Avenue. Julius is listed as a house
engineer and there were two additional children, Mary L. (age 9) and John D. (age 5)." Ron Hogg noted that his grandfather had
connections with the local Archdiocese, and in addition to being a prolific Howard County house builder, constructed a number of

local institutional buildings.

The Kinlein’s eldest daughter and her husband Charles E. Hogg purchased the house from her parents in 1951. Charles Hogg was an
University of Baltimore-educated attorney, who was raised in Baltimore City. Ron Hogg stated that his paternal grandparents both
died of influenza when his father was quite young. In 1920, Charles E. Hogg (age 8) lived at 2626 E. Baltimore Street, on Patterson
Park in Baltimore City, with his uncle Joseph M. Smith (age 48), who was the manager of a candy factory, his aunt Mary K. (age 42),
his cousins Margaret M. (age 22), who was a bookkeeper for an undertaker, Edmund (age 20), who was a clerk at a candy factory, and
John (age 12).” Ten years later, in 1930, Charles and his elder sister, who was a stenographer, lived with the Smiths. '

Charles and Alberta met at Maple Cliffe when he was on an outing with friends. After his marriage to Alberta, he established a highly
respected law firm in Ellicott City. Mr. Hogg passed away in 1983. In 1987, Alberta transferred ownership of the property in Trust to
her children. Her son Ron Hogg, also an attorney, now keeps offices at the house. In 2004, the Hoggs are planning to subdivide the
property, retain the house and stable, and build about 20 additional houses on the lawn section of the 11.75-acre property.

* Department of Commerce — Bureau of the Census, Thirteenth Census of United States: 1910, Population Schedule, ED 51, Sheet 12B-13A.
® Department of Commerce — Bureau of the Census, Fourteenth Census of United States: 1920, Population Schedule, ED 266, Sheet 4A.

" Ibid., ED 121, Sheet 5B.

¥ Department of Commerce — Bureau of the Census, Fifteenth Census of United States: 1930, Population Schedule, ED 14-5, Sheet 7B.

° Department of Commerce — Bureau of the Census, Fourteenth Census of United States: 1920, Population Schedule, ED 69, Sheet 2A-2B.

' Department of Commerce — Bureau of the Census, Fifteenth Census of United States: 1930, Population Schedule, ED 4-72, Sheet SA.
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 11.75
Acreage of historical setting 11.75
Quadrangle name Ellicott City Quadrangle scale: 1:24.000

Verbal boundary description and justification

The boundary of Maple Cliffe replicates that of Howard County Map 25, Grid 14, Parcel 64, which is the buildings” historic and
current legal lot.

11. Form Prepared by

nameftitle Jennifer Goold, Historic Sites Surveyor

organization Howard County Department of Planning & Zoning date August 19, 2004
street & number 3430 Courthouse Drive telephone 410-313-4335
city or town Ellicott City state MD

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
DHCD/DHCP
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600
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Scully Jr., Vincent J. The Shingle Style and the Stick Style, Rev. Ed. New Haven: Yale University Press, 1971.




HO-587
Maple Cliffe
4012 College Avenue, Ellicott City
Howard County
CHAIN OF TITLE
GRANTOR GRANTEE DATE | LIBER | FOLIO | TRANS. PRICE ACREAGE COMMENTS
Alberta K. Hogg Alberta K. Hogg, Joan H. 04-13- | 6737 558 Deed 0.00 11.75 Four lots
George, Charles E. Hogg, 2002 (only house lot traced below)
Thomas F. Hogg, James S.
Hogg, Ronald R. Hogg, and
Judith M. Hogg Gavin, trustees
Alberta K. Hogg Joan H. George, trustee 12-31- | 6794 637 Deed 960,000.00 11.75 Includes right to the use of a spring as an easement
2002 appurtenant to the above described property...described
and referred to in a deed dated September 2,
1897...recorded in Liber JHO 68 Folio 256
Alberta K. Hogg Joan H. Hogg, Charles E. Hogg, | 02-18- 1633 87 Trust 0.00 11.75 Four lots
Thomas F. Hogg, James S. 1987 (only house lot traced below)
Hogg, Ronald R. Hogg, and
Judith M. Hogg, trustees
Julius A Kinlein Charles E. Hogg and Alberta K 12-28- 229 327 Deed 5.00 11.75 Property known as Maple cliffe,
and Teresa M Hogg 1951
Kinlein (Howard
County)
Charles E. Hogg Henry J. W. Sieling 12-28- | 229 329 | Mortgage | 15,000.00 11.75
and Alberta K. 1951
Hogg (Howard
County)
Mary Elizabeth Julius A Kinlein and Teresa M 09-16- 111 50 Deed 5.00 11.75 Property known as “Maplecliffe”, property devised to
Radcliffe (City of Kinlein (City of Baltimore) 1920 Mary Elizabeth Radcliffe in the last will and testament of
Baltimore) George W. Radcliffe date July 16, 1912 record in the
Orphans Court for Howard County in Wills Liber R.D. of
W. No. 5 Folio 260
Julius A Kinlein Mary Elizabeth Radcliffe (City | 09-16- 111 52 Mortgage | 6000.00 11.75
and Teresa M of Baltimore) 1920
Kinlein (City of
Baltimore)
Henry R. George. W. Radcliffe (Howard | 09-02- 68 256 Deed 1600.00 11.75 This deed also stipulates that the spring on the side of the
Hazlehurst County) 1897 road leading from the “farm road™ to the New Cut” road
(Howard County) shall be used by the said grantee, his heirs and assigns.

1ofl

10/13/04




Maple Cliffe

4012 College Avenue (HO- 587)
Ellicott City, Howard County Maryland
Attachment 2A of 2:  Aerial photo




Maple Cliffe

4012 College Avenue (HO- 587)
Ellicott City, Howard County Maryland
Attachment 2B of 2:  Aerial photo




Ho-597

Ellicott City, Howard County Maryland
USGS Ellicott City Quad

4012 College Avenue (HO=J

Maple Cliffe
Attachment 1 of 2:
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